REGULAR BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
TUESDAY NOVEMBER 18, 2025
ONE ASSELBORN WAY, GLENWOOD, IL 60425
7:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER BY Mayor Toleda Hart
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

RESOLUTION 2025-016- RECOGNIZING LAILA JONES AS “MAYOR OF THE
DAY.”

ROLL CALL BY CLERK Jesse Durden

CLERK’S OFFICE:
Motion to Approve the Regular Board Meeting Minutes of November 4, 2025

PUBLIC COMMENTS (3 Minutes Please)

BILLS PAYABLES AND PAYROLL Bryan Janssen

1. BILLS PAYABLES NOVEMBER 13, 2025:
Corporate Fund $247,368.54, Motor Fuel Tax Fund $9,269.00,
Water Account $18,057.05, Glenwoodie Golf Course $25,380.16,
Total All Funds $300,074.75

2. PAYROLL November 14, 2025:
Payroll for check Date November 14, 2025 - Administrative $18,010.36
Public Works $11,684.31, Police Department $173,061.54, Fire Department
$21,095.91, Senior Center $259.50, Elected Positions $1,07131, Sewer &
Water $21,699.43, and Glenwoodie Golf Course $27,259.48 for a
GRAND TOTAL PAYROLL of $274,141.84

COMMUNICATIONS FROM Mayor Toleda J. Hart
THE MAYOR'’S OFFICE

ATTORNEY’S REPORT
1. Approval of Amended RESOLUTION NO. 2025-011 implementing a Municipal
Grocery Retailer's Occupation Tax and a Municipal Grocery Occupation Tax
for the Village of Glenwood, Cook County, Illinois.



BOARD MEETING AGENDA
NOVEMBER 4, 2025
PAGE 2

VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR: James (JR) Patton
Report

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS

TRUSTEES REPORTS

NEW BUSINESS

OLD BUSINESS

OPEN TO THE PUBLIC (3 Minutes Please)

ADJOURNMENT

Sincerely, Joleda Nart (CW)
Toleda Hart

Village President

Posted 11/14/2025

**Open to the Public- Open Questions



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING
OF THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES
OF THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOCIS
HELD AT VILLAGE HALL, November 4, 2025

The Board Meeting was called to order at 7:00pm by Village President, Toleda J Hart. The
audience was led in the Pledge of Allegiance.

ROLL CALL: Upon Roll Call by Village Clerk Jesse Durden the following Trustee
responded: Brown, Hadnott, Mosley, Williams, Taylor, Rolle

ABSENT: NONE

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Police Chief Derek Peddycord, Attorney Ross Seclar,
Fire and Building Chief Kevin Welsh Jr., Village Public Works Joe
Benoit, Engineer Dave Schilling, Glenwoodie Phillip Robbins,
Village, Administrator James Patton, Finance Department Bryan
Janssen

ABSENT: NONE

CLERK'S OFFICE:
1. Motion to approve the Regular Board Meeting Minutes of October 21, 2025

Trustee Williams made a motion to accept the regular board meeting minutes of
October 21, 2025, Trustee Taylor seconded the motion.

DISCUSSION: Trustee Brown explains that she would like verbiage added to the minutes,
to the part were discussing VA Patton becoming the permanent VA. Also, there weren’t
any discussions listed but there were discussions by my myself, Trustee Williams, and the
Mayor. It’s not that the clerk needs to list everything that was said but there needs to be
some sort of verbiage stating something was said during the line item. Mayor Hart asks
Trustee Brown to put this in an email to the Clerk. Trustee Brown states that under
adjournment it was listed that | said yes but | voted no.

Upon Roll Call: Ayes: 6 Naes: 0 Recues: 0 Absent: 0 Abstain: 0
Ayes: Brown, Hadnott, Mosley, Williams, Taylor, Rolle

Naes: 0

Recues: 0

Absent: 0

Abstain: 0

Motion Approved: Yes, Motion Passed.



Regular Board Meeting Minutes
November 4, 2025
Page 2

PUBLIC COMMENTS:

Leon Moore: Speaks on the Attorney’s Report where he feels it would not be a good deal as
the Village would lose $115,000.

Ivan Moore:  Speaks on the Civility Pledge where he gives praise to Trustee Taylor and
Trustee Rolle concerning they’re dislike for it. He also expressed that he wants
to see a better Glenwood.

Barbara Has a complaint against her landlord at 30 Nugent Street. The furnace isn’t
Hellom: working and asks the Village for help. Mayor Hart tells Ms. Hellom to contact
VA Patton, and he will advise you on rectifying the situation.

Tanisha Informs the board of a smell in the air where it may be a dead animal, sewer
Bryson: or the meat market near her home. The Hickory Glen Park has a marsh area

that is overgrown where coyotes are hiding.

Darryl Sykes: Has a concern about the Main Street TIF that will expire next year.

Rodrick Asks on behalf of the community to consider hiring part-time Police Officers
Murdock: from other departments for neighborhood safety.
BILLS PAYABLES AND PAYROLL: Bryan Janssen

1. Bills Payable October 31, 2025 — Corporate $266,821.33, Motor Fuel Tax Fund
$15,883.57, Water Account $193,746.65, TIF Holbrook Road $2,150.00, Glenwoodie
Golf Course $23,851.24, TIF Halsted North $268.75, TIF Halsted South $806.25
Total All Funds $503,527.79

Trustee Mosley made a motion to approve the Bills Payables of October 31, 2025,
Trustee Rolle seconded the motion.



Regular Board Meeting Minutes
November 4, 2025

Page 3

DISCUSSION: NONE

Upon Roll Call: Ayes: 6 Naes: 0 Recues: 0 Absent: 0 Abstain: 0
Ayes: Brown, Hadnott, Mosley, Taylor, Williams, Rolle

Naes: 0

Recues: 0

Absent: 0

Abstain: 0

Motion Approved: Yes, Motion Passed.

Payroll for Check Date October 31, 2025 — Administrative $17,232.30, Public Works
$11,825.11, Police Department $106,082.79, Fire Department $21,116.12, Senior Center
$345.99, Elected Positions $7,350.88, Sewer & Water $21,960.92, and Glenwoodie Golf
Course $30,365.31 TOTAL PAYROLL $204,567.97, Police Reimbursable (50) GRAND TOTAL
PAYROLL of $216,279.42

Trustee Rolle made a motion to approve the payroll of October 31, 2025, Trustee Taylor
seconded the motion.

DISCUSSION: Trustee Brown asks do any of the amounts include overtime and which
ones? FD Janssen responds yes, and they are the Police, Fire and the Golf Course.
Trustee Brown asks will we ever see a breakdown of overtime? Mayor Hart informs
Trustee Brown that she can get FD Janssen to put a list out. Trustee Rolle asks Mayor
Hart is she able to share why we don’t get the itemized report of each department
employee? Mayor Hart states that report stopped prior to me taking office but the
reason it was terminated was that it was inaccurate, and it contained confidential
information on it. Trustee Brown asks why it wasn’t corrected or withhold the
confidential information and continue the report? Mayor Hart states that she didn’t see
a need to continue the report. Trustee Brown asks Mayor Hart when you were
Treasurer did you know that this information should not be included? Mayor Hart
replies by saying absolutely. Trustee Rolle asks Mayor Hart is there a way to get a
different document that we can see that is public? Mayor Hart asks Trustee Rolle do you
want a list of all employees’ salary? Trustee Rolle says yes. Trustee Taylor asks Mayor
Hart, will we see a summary of the employees’ overtime? Mayor Hart states that it will
be included once we extract the employees’ payroll and it will show those amounts.



Regular Board Meeting Minutes
November 4, 2025
Page 4

Upon Roll Call: Ayes: 6 Naes: 0 Recues: 0 Absent: 0 Abstain: 0
Ayes: Brown, Hadnott, Mosley, Williams, Taylor, Rolle

Naes: 0

Recues: 0

Absent: 0

Abstain: O

Motion Approved: Yes, Motion Passed.

ATTORNEY’S REPORT: Ross Secler

1. Approval of RESOLUTION NO. 2025-015 a settlement agreement between the Village of
Glenwood, Cook County, lllinois, and Opilka Enterprises Il, Corp., regarding Cook County
Circuit Court case number 2025 CH 03229.

Trustee Mosley made a motion to approve RESOLUTION 2025-015 Trustee Brown
seconded the motion.

DISCUSSION: Trustee Hadnott commented, what can we learn from this poorly
structured agreement? 1) Having a performance bond in place. 2) Never “Pay to
Play” with taxpayers’ money. Trustee Mosley asks will the lessee have retail on the
property? VA Patton informs Trustee Mosley that there will be high nutrient produce
grown in the greenhouse. This is more of manufacturing and not sales tax. Trustee
Brown asks will Tuscan Gardens still exist? VA Patton explains Tuscan Gardens the
restaurant will still operate, and the investors will operate on the property. Trustee
Brown then asks how will both businesses exist on the property. VA Patton explains
that Tuscan Gardens will exist where it is, and the greenhouse will be operated by
the investors. Mayor Hart explains exactly where the greenhouse is located. Trustee
Rolle asks what is the original amount of the RDA agreement between the Village
and Tuscan Gardens? Mayor Hart states that she believes it was $400,000.00, but he
only received $250,000.00. Trustee Rolle asks so we are only going to discuss the
$131,000.00? Mayor Hart informs Trustee Rolle the truth is we weren’t going to get
anything. By partnering with the investors and dealing only with the investors to
guarantee the funds, we settled for half to have the property back on the tax roll.



Regular Board Meeting Minutes
November 4, 2025
Page 5

Upon Roll Call: Ayes: 6 Naes: 0 Recues: 0 Absent: 0 Abstain: 0
Ayes: Brown, Hadnott, Mosley, Williams, Taylor, Rolle

Naes: 0

Recues: 0

Absent: 0

Abstain: 0

Motion Approved: Yes, Motion Passed.

2. Attorney Ross Secler informs everyone on the status of the Halsted Plaza where we have
been in talks with the developers in the plaza and the Village has issued a final demand
letter stating the property must become compliant. Or the Village will have to take
action. Trustee Brown states that she thought the Village already sent the demand letter
to Glenwood Oaks. Attorney Ross Secler states Glenwood Oaks received our demand
letter, and we are awaiting their response. Trustee Brown asks how long have we waited
on the response? Attorney Ross Secler states that they have the 1%t demand letter.

VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR: James (JR) Patton

For the residents who may need services, there are two food pantries in the Village. Nellie
Prather Foundation and Living Springs Church. Bloom Township also operates a food pantry.
Bloom Township offers a substantial water bill assistance program. We are working with a
representative from CEDA to get on the agenda in December at the Coffee with the Mayor to
give a presentation of information on additional resources that they provide. We will
disseminate the information as we receive it. Abandoned Property Acquisition Program is a
program that allows people who are capable financially to take a vacant property and rehab it
to get it back on the tax roll. The Mayor and the Village board will host a Veterans luncheon on
November 11, 2025, 12pm-2pm at the Blakley Center. The Village was one of twenty-six
communities to receive $2,500.00 from ComEd and the Metropolitan Mayors Caucus to apply
towards our tree lighting celebration. After a meeting with the contractor and IDOT the
expected bridge completion should be in a couple weeks. Saturday November 8, 2025, Dr. Kisha
E. McCaskill will attend the Coffee with the Mayor to give a presentation on resources that are
available through her office. Trustee Brown asks is it possible to have a additional presentation
at the Blakley Center from McCaskill’s office? VA Patton says I’'m sure we can do something like
that. Trustee Brown asks what would stop an investor from rehabbing a property then renting it
through the APA program? VA Patton explains the program allows for the house to be rented. If
the homeowner wants to rent the property it will fall under the rental rules of the Village.
Mayor Hart states that it is our intent to enforce the rules of the Village.



Regular Board Meeting Minutes
November 4, 2025
Page 6

1. Presentation of Quilters Plus - Constance Lee
Lucy Claus and Constance Lee gave an explanation of their organization and presented
Veteran Arthur Pinta with a special quilt in honor of his service to our country.

NEW BUSINESS: Trustee Hadnott expressed that there are 1.4 acres on Main Street. I'd like to
start putting this and other properties on the market and getting them on the tax roll. Mayor
Hart tells Trustee Hadnott that we are working on it. Trustee Taylor informs everyone that on
December 5, 2025, is the date for our Christmas tree lighting ceremony and I'd like to see
everyone there. There will be choirs singing a band playing and Santa will be present.

OLD BUSINESS: NONE
PUBLIC COMMENTS:

Darryl Sykes: | pay into Main Street TIF and I'd like to know why it’s not allocated on the Bills
Payable? Mayor Hart explains that we didn’t make any payments through that TIF. We can talk
so that you can have a better understanding on how the TIF works.

Mariah Smith: Would the Opilka Enterprise proposal be sent to the Economic Development
Committee for approval, or would it be decided that it would come into town? Mayor Hart
states that it was voted on tonight and approved by this board. What is the commercial
property escrow price for the APA program? VA Patton explains that it varies from property to
property.

Rodrick Murdock: I'd like to identify at the next meeting from Chief Peddycord, how many
Police Officers that we have currently? How many that are required to be in the position of
part-time? What can we do to change that ruling?

Sherri Brown: Can someone share what happened earlier on Harper? Chief Peddycord explains
a robbery occurred in another jurisdiction. Officers from that area became involved in a pursuit
of the offenders. The pursuit traveled to Glenwood. The vehicle pursuit ended in the 400 block
of Harper. The offenders fled on foot into a private residence. The police surrounded the
residence and captured the offenders.



Regular Board Meeting Minutes
November 4, 2025
Page 7

ADJOURNMENT:
Meeting adjourned at 8:03pm

Trustee Hadnott made a motion to adjourn, Trustee Mosley seconded the motion.

DISCUSSION: NONE

Upon Roll Call: Ayes: 6 Naes: 0 Recues: 0 Absent: 0 Abstain: O
Ayes: Brown, Hadnott, Mosley, Williams, Taylor, Rolle

Naes: 0

Recues: 0

Absent: 0

Abstain: 0

Motion Approved: Yes, Motion Passed.

Approved by: Jesse Durden, Village Clerk



ACS FINANCIAL
11/13/2025 13:55:19

FUND

FUND

01
03
10
70

RECAP:

DESCRIPTION

CORPORATE FUND

MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND
WATER ACCOUNT
GLENWOODIE GOLF COURSE

TOTAL ALL FUNDS

BANK

BANK

RECAP:

CORPORATE

WATER

MOTOR FUEL TAX
GLENWOODIE GOLF COURSE

TOTAL ALL BANKS

VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
Paid Invoice Report by Vendor GL060S5S-vV08.19 RECAPPAGE
GL861RM

DISBURSEMENTS

247,368.54
9,269.00
18,057.05
25,380.16

300,074.75

DISBURSEMENTS

247,368.54
18,057.05
9,269.00
25,380.16

300,074.75



ACS FINANCIAL
11/13/2025 13:55:18

Vendor Name............. Number

Date Bank Check Description............

ACCURATE EMPLOYMENT SCRE 02430
11/18/2025 BLUE 65445 OCTOBER SCREENING
ACCURATE EMPLOYMENT SCRE 02430

ACUSHNET COMPANY 00067
11/18/2025 RED 23612 MERCHANDISE
11/18/2025 RED 23612 MERCHANDISE
ACUSHNET COMPANY 00067

AIR ONE EQUIPMENT, INC 00626
11/18/2025 BLUE 65446 METER CALIBRATION
AIR ONE EQUIPMENT, INC 00626

ALPHA BAKING CO., INC 03462
11/18/2025 RED 23613 COGS
11/18/2025 RED 23613 SUPPLIES
11/18/2025 RED 23613 SUPPLIES
ALPHA BAKING CO., INC 03462

AMERICAN MEDICAL RESPONS 03510
11/18/2025 BLUE 65447 OCTOBER 2025 SERVICE
AMERICAN MEDICAL RESPONS 03510

ARROW STRATEGY GROUP 03194
11/18/2025 BLUE 65448 OCTOBER RETAINER
ARROW STRATEGY GROUP 03194
AT & T 01427

11/18/2025 BLUE 65449 708-753-2439 524 8
11/18/2025 BLUE 65449 708 753-2449 816 6
AT & T 01427

AT&T MOBILITY 03080
11/18/2025 BLUE 65450 287314043334
11/18/2025 BLUE 65450 287314043334
AT&T MOBILITY 03080

BENNY'S CONCRETE 03169
11/18/2025 LTBL 1461 CITY SIDEWALKS
11/18/2025 LTBL 1461 CITY SIDEWALKS
BENNY'S CONCRETE 03169

C & M PIPE & SUPPLY CO. 01346
11/18/2025 GREN 46044 SUPPLIES
11/18/2025 GREN 46044 SUPPLIES
C & M PIPE & SUPPLY CO. 01346

Name in Directory file

Amount

193
193

175.
731.
907.

394,
394.

133.

84
57
274

85,824
85,824

3,500.
3,500.

909.
1,880.
2,789.

169.
136.
306.

6,010.
3,200.
9,210.

399.
533.
932.

ACCURATE EMPLOYMENT SCREENING

.04
.04

57
54
11

97
97

13
.20
.24
.57

AMERICAN MEDICAL RESPONSE

.32
.32

00
00

32
36
68

32
86
18

00
00
00

00
00
00

* %

* %

* %k

* %

* %k

* %

Paid Invoice Report by Vendor

Class

P 01.000.

Vendor Total

P 70.000.
P 70.000.

Vendor Total

P 01.000.

Vendor Total

P 70.000.
P 70.000.
P 70.000.

Vendor Total

P 01.000.

Vendor Total

P 01.000.

Vendor Total

P 01.000.
P 01.000.

Vendor Total

P 01.000.
P 01.000.

Vendor Total

P 03.000.
P 03.000.

Vendor Total

P 10.000.
P 10.000.

Vendor Total

2010
2010

2010

2010
2010
2010

2010

2010

2010
2010

2010
2010

2010
2010

2010
2010

ACCOUNTS

ACCOUNTS
ACCOUNTS

ACCOUNTS

ACCOUNTS
ACCOUNTS
ACCOUNTS

ACCOUNTS

ACCOUNTS

ACCOUNTS
ACCOUNTS

ACCOUNTS
ACCOUNTS

ACCOUNTS
ACCOUNTS

ACCOUNTS
ACCOUNTS

VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
GL861R-V08.19 PAGE

PAYABLE

PAYABLE
PAYABLE

PAYABLE

PAYABLE
PAYABLE
PAYABLE

PAYABLE

PAYABLE

PAYABLE
PAYABLE

PAYABLE
PAYABLE

PAYABLE
PAYABLE

PAYABLE
PAYABLE

Invoice

921683710
921693125

228248

250056296010
250056303028
250056310010

11145

110325

95248-102525
98166-102525

43334-102525
89881-103125

10272025
10312025

27269
27271



ACS FINANCIAL VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD

11/13/2025 13:55:18 Paid Invoice Report by Vendor GL861R-V08.19 PAGE 2
Vendor Name............. Number Name in Directory file........ Class

Date Bank Check Description............ Amount P.O. F/P Fund and Account........... Account Description...... 1099 Invoice
CALUMET CITY PLUMBING 01517 NO

11/18/2025 GREN 46045 BACKFLOW CERTIFICATIONS
CALUMET CITY PLUMBING 01517

2,323.00 P 10.000.2010
2,323.00 ** Vendor Total

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE -

CAMM'S FAMILY OF AUTOMOT 03270 CAMM'S FAMILY OF AUTOMOTIVE NO

11/18/2025 BLUE 65451 1998 GMC 3,005.83 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 51624
11/18/2025 BLUE 65451 2001 INTERNATIONAL 425.02 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 51632
11/18/2025 BLUE 65451 2014 FORD F150 120.13 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 51633
11/18/2025 GREN 46046 2001 INTERNATIONAL 1,627.82 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 51625

CAMM'S FAMILY OF AUTOMOT 03270 5,178.80 ** Vendor Total

CINTAS 03041 NO

11/18/2025 BLUE 65452 SUPPLIES 78.93 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 5299933913
CINTAS 03041 78.93 ** Vendor Total

CLARA'S CATERING 02906 NO

11/18/2025 RED 23614 BANQUET - 8/2/25 3,250.00 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 08022025
11/18/2025 RED 23614 BANQUET - 9/8/25 3,625.00 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 09082025
11/18/2025 RED 23614 BANQUET - 9/12/25 413.44 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 09122025
11/18/2025 RED 23614 BANQUET - 9/12/25 841.50 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 09122025
CLARA'S CATERING 02906 8,129.94 ** Vendor Total

CLERKS OFFICE-PETTY CASH 01750 NO

11/18/2025 BLUE 65453 CERTIFIED MAIL FEES 6.08 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 10312025
11/18/2025 BLUE 65453 SENIOR TREATS 42.92 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 11032025
11/18/2025 BLUE 65453 BIRTHDAY/ANNIVERSARY 32.94 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 11062025
CLERKS OFFICE~PETTY CASH 01750 81.94 ** Vendor Total

CLESENS INC 03520 NO

11/18/2025 RED 23615 FERTILIZER 3,455.00 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 28659-00
CLESENS INC 03520 3,455.00 ** Vendor Total

COEO SOLUTIONS LLC 02843 NO

11/18/2025 BLUE 65454 NOVEMBER 2025 509.91 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 1148649

COEO SOLUTIONS LLC 02843 509.91 ** Vendor Total

COM ED 00210 NO

11/18/2025 BLUE 65455 1724137000 187.12 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425
11/18/2025 BLUE 65455 6786830100 36.86 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425
11/18/2025 BLUE 65455 6974762222 82.96 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425
11/18/2025 BLUE 65455 7558661222 72.33 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425
11/18/2025 BLUE 65455 1142151222 182.81 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425
11/18/2025 BLUE 65455 1210434000 237.57 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425
11/18/2025 BLUE 65455 1670712222 31.60 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425
11/18/2025 BLUE 65455 1801631222 31.05 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425
11/18/2025 BLUE 65455 2908403000 107.08 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425
11/18/2025 BLUE 65455 3580716111 15.76 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425
11/18/2025 BLUE 65455 4359892222 793.81 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425



ACS FINANCIAL

VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD

11/13/2025 13:55:18 Paid Invoice Report by Vendor GL861R-V08.19 PAGE 3
Vendor Name............. Number Name in Directory file........ Class

Date Bank Check Description............ Amount P.0. F/P Fund and Account........... Account Description...... 1099 1Invoice
COM ED 00210 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65455 5554512222 185.45 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE -
11/18/2025 BLUE 65455 5811674000 83.58 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425
11/18/2025 BLUE 65455 78465612222 37.44 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425
11/18/2025 GREN 46047 2866065000 63.81 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425
11/18/2025 GREN 46047 6852378000 752.86 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425
11/18/2025 GREN 46047 7870397000 87.52 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 37000-102425
COM ED 00210 3,049.61 ** Vendor Total
CONSERV FS 00091 NO
11/18/2025 RED 23616 FUEL 668.06 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 105019938
11/18/2025 RED 23616 FUEL 670.96 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 105019939
CONSERV FS 00091 1,339.02 ** Vendor Total
CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY, 03624 CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY, INC. NO
11/18/2025 GREN 46048 707611-5 2,801.85 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 76115-100925
CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY, 03624 2,801.85 ** Vendor Total
COOK COUNTY BUREAU OF TE 03154 COOK COUNTY BUREAU OF TECH. NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65456 01/01/25-12/31/25 546.70 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 10212025
COOK COUNTY BUREAU OF TE 03154 546.70 ** Vendor Total
COZZINI BROS., INC. 02183 NO
11/18/2025 RED 23617 KNIFE SERVICE 47.95 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - C19801403
COZZINI BROS., INC. 02183 47.95 ** Vendor Total
DASH MEDICAL GLOVES 01777 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65457 GLOVES 110.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - INV1341164
DASH MEDICAL GLOVES 01777 110.00 ** Vendor Total
DELTA SONIC CAR WASH 01470 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65458 CAR WASHES - 10-4 /10-31 56.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - INV-0031594
DELTA SONIC CAR WASH 01470 56.00 ** Vendor Total
DMC SECURITY SERVICES IN 02799 DMC SECURITY SERVICES INC. NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65459 7100D272 - 3 MONTHS 60.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 316018
11/18/2025 BLUE 65459 71000470 - 3 MONTHS 75.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 316019
DMC SECURITY SERVICES IN 02799 135.00 ** Vendor Total
ELEVATOR INSPECTION SERV 03628 ELEVATOR INSPECTION SERVICE CO NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65460 INSPECTION 80.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 00339681
ELEVATOR INSPECTION SERV 03628 80.00 ** Vendor Total
ELMORE'S LAWN CARE SERVI 02453 ELMORE'S LAWN CARE SERVICE INC (NO1)
11/18/2025 BLUE 65461 WEEK OF 10-27-25 3,109.03 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE NO1l 557

ELMORE'S LAWN CARE SERVI 02453 3,109.03 ** Vendor Total



ACS FINANCIAL VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD

11/13/2025 13:55:18 Paid Invoice Report by Vendor GL861R-V08.19 PAGE 4
Vendor Name............. Number Name in Directory file........ Class

Date Bank Check Description............ Amount P.O. F/P Fund and Account........... Account Description...... 1099 1Invoice
EVANGELINE SPECIALTIES, 03655 EVANGELINE SPECIALTIES, INC. NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65462 CHRISTMAS LIGHTS 34,411.39 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE -
EVANGELINE SPECIALTIES, 03655 34,411.39 ** Vendor Total
FIRE SERVICE INC. 02342 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65463 AMBULANCE 21 (1) 5,830.38 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - ST-22852
11/18/2025 BLUE 65463 AMBULANCE 21 (2) 800.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - ST-22852
FIRE SERVICE INC. 02342 6,630.38 ** Vendor Total
FORTRESS PLUS SOLUTIONS 03673 NO
11/06/2025 BLUE 65444 EVIDENCE BOXES -SUPPLIES 2,821.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 25TG902
FORTRESS PLUS SOLUTIONS 03673 2,821.00 ** Vendor Total
FOUR SEASONS HEATING & C 03622 FOUR SEASONS HEATING & COOLING NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65464 SERVICE 10/24/25 1,170.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 1-5604354
11/18/2025 BLUE 65464 SERVICE 10/28/25 525.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 1-5612653
FOUR SEASONS HEATING & C 03622 1,695.00 ** Vendor Total
FUSION CONNECT, INC 03607 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65465 TELEPHONE 304.12 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 1029462848
11/18/2025 BLUE 65465 TELEPHONE 304.12 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 109451116
FUSION CONNECT, INC 03607 608.24 ** Vendor Total
GALLAGHER MATERIAL CORP 00757 NO
11/18/2025 LTBL 1462 N50 SURFACE 59.00 P 03.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 41590
GALLAGHER MATERIAL CORP 00757 59.00 ** Vendor Total
GBJ SALES LLC 02905 NO
11/18/2025 GREN 46049 SUPPLIES 1,867.45 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 5982
GBJ SALES LLC 02905 1,867.45 ** Vendor Total
GREAT LAKES COCA-COLA 02997 NO
11/18/2025 RED 23618 SUPPLIES 1,108.30 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 49505941008
GREAT LAKES COCA-COLA 02997 1,108.30 ** Vendor Total
HERITAGE TECHNOLOGY SOLU 02486 HERITAGE TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65466 ANNUAL BILLING - 2026 90.73 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 2523717
11/18/2025 BLUE 65466 PHONE SYSTEM APC 1,206.52 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 253088
11/18/2025 RED 23619 WIFI - GLENWOODIE 236.87 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 253070
HERITAGE TECHNOLOGY SOLU 02486 1,534.12 ** Vendor Total
HOMEWOOD DISPOSAL SERVIC 01277 HOMEWOOD DISPOSAL SERVICE, INC. NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65467 18445 HALSTED (NET) 63.98 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 9617689
11/18/2025 BLUE 65467 MUNICIPAL SERVICES 63,914.20 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 9625002

HOMEWOOD DISPOSAL SERVIC 01277 63,978.18 ** Vendor Total



ACS FINANCIAL VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD

11/13/2025 13:55:18 Paid Invoice Report by Vendor GL861R-V08.19 PAGE 5
Vendor Name............. Number Name in Directory file........ Class

Date Bank Check Description............ Amount P.O. F/P Fund and Account........... Account Description...... 1099 1Invoice
ILLIANA BOARDUP LLC 03513 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65468 252 S. ELLIS 669.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE -
ILLIANA BOARDUP LLC 03513 669.00 ** Vendor Total
ILLINOIS PUBLIC RISK FUN 02633 ILLINOIS PUBLIC RISK FUND NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65469 DEC WORK COMP 1,097.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 95650
11/18/2025 BLUE 65469 DEC WORK COMP & FEE 2,458.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 95650
11/18/2025 BLUE 65469 DEC WORK COMP 7,235.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 95650
11/18/2025 BLUE 65469 DEC WORK COMP 4,051.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 95650
11/18/2025 GREN 46050 DEC WORK COMP 3,313.00 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 95650
11/18/2025 RED 23620 DEC WORK COMP 1,654.00 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 95650
ILLINOIS PUBLIC RISK FUN 02633 19,808.00 ** Vendor Total
JESSE WHITE TUMBLING TEA 03674 JESSE WHITE TUMBLING TEAM NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65470 6/19/25 PERFORMANCE 1,100.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 06192025
JESSE WHITE TUMBLING TEA 03674 1,100.00 ** Vendor Total
KINNEY'S KLEENING 02887 NO
11/18/2025 RED 23621 OCTOBER CLEANING 1,400.00 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 4958
KINNEY'S KLEENING 02887 1,400.00 ** Vendor Total
KS STATEBANK 03619 NO
11/18/2025 RED 23622 GOLF CART LEASE PAYMENT 1,856.25 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 64052-12-2025
KS STATEBANK 03619 1,856.25 ** Vendor Total
LANER MUCHIN 02011 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65471 RETAINER - NOVEMBER 2025 2,750.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 708583
LANER MUCHIN 02011 2,750.00 ** Vendor Total
MASTER DRAFT, LLC. 02721 NO
11/18/2025 RED 23623 BI-WEEKLY SERVICE 130.00 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 3412
MASTER DRAFT, LLC. 02721 130.00 ** Vendor Total
MENARDS 01633 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65472 SUPPLIES 124.40 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 11382
11/18/2025 BLUE 65472 SUPPLIES 65.62 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 11446
11/18/2025 BLUE 65472 SUPPLIES 9.97 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 11938
11/18/2025 GREN 46051 SUPPLIES 74.18 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 11563
11/18/2025 GREN 46051 SUPPLIES 289.98 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 11653
11/18/2025 RED 23624 SUPPLIES 201.57 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 12078
MENARDS 01633 765.72 ** Vendor Total
METROPOLITAN INDUSTRIES, 02163 METROPOLITAN INDUSTRIES, INC. NO
11/18/2025 GREN 46052 FIELD SERVICE 830.00 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - INV076493

METROPOLITAN INDUSTRIES, 02163 830.00 ** Vendor Total



ACS FINANCIAL VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD

11/13/2025 13:55:18 Paid Invoice Report by Vendor GL861R-V08.19 PAGE 6
Vendor Name............. Number Name in Directory file........ Class

Date Bank Check Description............ Amount P.O. F/P Fund and Account........... Account Description...... 1099 1Invoice
MICHELLE MOSLEY 03643 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65473 REIMBURSE HOA TREATS 108.38 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE -
MICHELLE MOSLEY 03643 108.38 ** Vendor Total
MONARCH AUTO SUPPLY INC. 00566 NO
11/18/2025 RED 23625 SUPPLIES 108.39 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 6981-670369
11/18/2025 RED 23625 SUPPLIES 298.78 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 6981-670423
MONARCH AUTO SUPPLY INC. 00566 407.17 ** Vendor Total
NICOR GAS 00664 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65474 74-66~15-1000 3 83.83 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 10003-102425
11/18/2025 BLUE 65474 03-12-26-1000 3 75.19 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 10003-102725
11/18/2025 BLUE 65474 31-35-27-1000 3 150.07 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 10003-102725
11/18/2025 BLUE 65474 85-37-37-1000 4 78.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 10004-102825
11/18/2025 BLUE 65474 99-61-94-1000 6 4,192.30 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 10006-102425
11/18/2025 BLUE 65474 73-90-34-1000 6 65.20 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 10006-~102725
11/18/2025 BLUE 65474 54-12-26-1000 6 146.39 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 10006-102725
11/18/2025 BLUE 65474 34-12-26-1000 8 56.66 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 10008-102725
11/18/2025 GREN 46053 84-13-83-1000 2 232.47 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 10002-102825
11/18/2025 GREN 46053 24-77-37-1000 9 55.26 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 10009-102825
NICOR GAS 00664 5,135.37 ** Vendor Total
NORTH EAST MULTI REGIONA 00138 NORTH EAST MULTI REGIONAL NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65475 HANDGUN SKILLS TRAINING 300.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 391908
NORTH EAST MULTI REGIONA 00138 300.00 ** Vendor Total
PIONEER OFFICE FORMS, IN 01564 PIONEER OFFICE FORMS, INC. NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65476 BUSINESS CARDS 133.38 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 97163
11/18/2025 BLUE 65476 BUSINESS CARDS 133.38 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 97164
11/18/2025 BLUE 65476 BUSINESS CARDS 127.50 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 97166
PIONEER OFFICE FORMS, IN 01564 394.26 ** Vendor Total
PIRTEK SOUTH HOLLAND 01710 NO
11/18/2025 GREN 46054 SUPPLIES 121.28 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - SH-T00026632
PIRTEK SOUTH HOLLAND 01710 121.28 ** Vendor Total
PITNEY BOWES 00494 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65477 POSTAGE METER 695.52 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 3107469109
PITNEY BOWES 00494 695.52 ** Vendor Total
PORTABLE JOHN, INC. 01897 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65478 11/7/25 TO 12/4/25 268.37 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - VG24129
PORTABLE JOHN, INC. 01897 268.37 ** Vendor Total
REINDERS, INC. 01519 NO
11/18/2025 RED 23626 SUPPLIES 1,863.49 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 6081122-00
11/18/2025 RED 23626 SUPPLIES 398.08 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 6082369-00
11/18/2025 RED 23626 SUPPLIES 87.20 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 6084947-00

REINDERS, INC. 01519 2,348.717 ** Vendor Total



ACS FINANCIAL VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD

11/13/2025 13:55:18 Paid Invoice Report by Vendor GL861R-V08.19 PAGE 7
Vendor Name............. Number Name in Directory file........ Class

Date Bank Check Description............ Amount P.O. F/P Fund and Account........... Account Description...... 1099 Invoice
RELIANCE SAFETY LANE & S 00078 RELIANCE SAFETY LANE & SERVICE NO
11/18/2025 GREN 46055 SAFETY INSPECTIONS 152.00 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE -
RELIANCE SAFETY LANE & S 00078 152.00 ** Vendor Total
ROEDA SIGNS & SCREEN TEC 01826 ROEDA SIGNS & SCREEN TECH NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65479 SIGN REPAIR 1,536.14 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 158014
ROEDA SIGNS & SCREEN TEC 01826 1,536.14 ** Vendor Total
ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS 01566 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65480 COMMERCIAL TESTING 85.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 4262859
ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS 01566 85.00 ** Vendor Total
SCOTT'S U SAVE TIRE & WH 03238 SCOTT'S U SAVE TIRE & WHEELS NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65481 2011 EXPEDITION 1,010.44 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 576000
11/18/2025 BLUE 65481 2011 EXPEDITION 1,094.68 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 576120
11/18/2025 BLUE 65481 2015 TAHOE 990.80 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 578000
SCOTT'S U SAVE TIRE & WH 03238 3,095.92 ** Vendor Total
STONY TIRE INC 00028 NO
11/18/2025 GREN 46056 SUPPLIES 52.20 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ~ 1-211868
STONY TIRE INC 00028 52.20 ** Vendor Total
SUBURBAN LABORATORIES, I 02706 SUBURBAN LABORATORIES, INC. NO
11/18/2025 GREN 46057 COLIFORM 212.50 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - GA5005233
SUBURBAN LABORATORIES, I 02706 212.50 ** Vendor Total
THE TORO COMPANY - NSN 01417 NO
11/18/2025 RED 23627 NOVEMBER 2025 842.00 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 412603462
THE TORO COMPANY - NSN 01417 842.00 ** Vendor Total
THORNCREEK MATERIAL 03058 NO
11/18/2025 GREN 46058 BACKFILL 1,155.87 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 27503
11/18/2025 GREN 46058 BACKFILL 1,112.00 P 10.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 27515
THORNCREEK MATERIAL 03058 2,267.87 ** Vendor Total
UDOS CAR WASH 02535 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65482 OCTOBER CAR WASHES 65.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - INV-000023
UDOS CAR WASH 02535 65.00 ** Vendor Total
ULINE 01573 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65483 SUPPLIES 220.95 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE = 200017245
ULINE 01573 220.95 ** Vendor Total
UNIFIRST CORPORATION 02873 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65484 MATS 206.30 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 1651161204

UNIFIRST CORPORATION 02873 206.30 ** Vendor Total



ACS FINANCIAL VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD

11/13/2025 13:55:18 Paid Invoice Report by Vendor GL861R-V08.19 PAGE 8
Vendor Name............. Number Name in Directory file........ Class
Date Bank Check Description............ Amount P.O. F/P Fund and Account........... Account Description...... 1089 Invoice
UNITED RENTALS NORTHWEST 03062 UNITED RENTALS NORTHWEST, INC NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65485 SUPPLIES 509.37 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE -
UNITED RENTALS NORTHWEST 03062 509.37 ** Vendor Total
US GAS 03214 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65486 CYLINDER RENT 231.50 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 487191
11/18/2025 BLUE 65486 CYLINDER RENT 103.25 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 487192
US Gas 03214 334.75 ** Vendor Total
VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD WATE 02540 VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD WATER NO
11/18/2025 RED 23628 104-3800-00-01 776.00 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 00001-103025
VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD WATE 02540 776.00 ** Vendor Total
WAREHOUSE DIRECT, INC 03632 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65487 SUPPLIES 244 .32 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 6027260~0
11/18/2025 BLUE 65487 SUPPLIES 3.09 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 6027559-0
WAREHOUSE DIRECT, INC 03632 247.41 ** Vendor Total
WILKENS FOODSERVICE, INC 02945 WILKENS FOODSERVICE, INC. NO
11/18/2025 RED 23629 SUPPLIES 265.64 P 70.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 694952 A
WILKENS FOODSERVICE, INC 02945 265.64 ** Vendor Total
WRIGHT MATERIALS, LLC 03483 NO
11/18/2025 BLUE 65488 CONCRETE DUMP 40.00 P 01.000.2010 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - 11805

WRIGHT MATERIALS, LLC 03483 40.00 ** Vendor Total



ACS FINANCIAL VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD

11/13/2025 13:55:18 Paid Invoice Report by Vendor GL861R-V08.19 PAGE 9
Vendor Name............. Number Name in Directory file........ Class
Date Bank Check Description............ Amount P.O. F/P Fund and Account........... Account Description...... 1099 1Invoice
Report Totals: 300,074.75
VENDORS PRINTED: 72

RECORDS PROCESSED: 140



Village of Glenwood Payroll Summary
Check Date: 11/14/2025

Village Pay Employer Tax Total
Administrative 16,799.10 1211.26|%$ 18,010.36
Public Works 10,898.14 786.17 1% 11,684.31
Police Department 161,075.85 11,98569|% 173,061.54
Fire Department 19,625.93 1,4690981% 21,095.91
Senior Center 241.05 18451 9% 259.50
Elected Positions 995.18 76.131$% 1,071.31
Sewer & Water 20,239.40 146003|$ 21,699.43
Total Village 229,874.65 17,007.71 | $ 246,882.36
Glenwoodie Golf 25,392.39 1,867.09]|% 27,259.48
Total Payroll $255,267.04 $18,874.80] $ 274,141.84
Reimbursable $0.00 $

(Police)

Grand Total $255,267.04 $18,874.80 $274,141.84




VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

AMENDED ORDINANCE 2025-11

AN AMENDED ORDINANCE IMPLEMENTING A MUNICIPAL GROCERY
RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION TAX AND A MUNICIPAL GROCERY OCCUPATION
TAX FOR THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

AMENDED ORDINANCE ADOPTED BY THE
PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD, THIS
18+ DAY OF NOVEMBER 2025

ORIGINAL ORDINANCE ADOPTED BY THE
PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD, ON THE
19" DAY OF AUGUST 2025

Published in pamphlet form
by authority of the President
and Board of Trustees of the
Village of Glenwood, Cook
County, Illinois this 18* day of
November 2025.



as an incident to making those sales of service, transfer groceries” as “an incident to a sale of service”
(the “Municipal Grocery Service Occupation Tax”) (65 ILCS 5/8-11-24); and

WHEREAS, any Municipal Grocery Service Occupation Tax shall be administered, collected,
and enforced by the Illinois Department of Revenue; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village believe that it is appropriate, necessary,
and in the best interests of the Village and its residents that the Village levy a Municipal Grocery
Retailers’ Occupation Tax as permitted by Section 8-11-24 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS
5/8-11-24); and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities believe that it is appropriate, necessary, and in the
best interests of the Village and its residents that the Village levies a Municipal Grocery Service
Occupation Tax as permitted by Section 8-11-24 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-11-24);

WHEREAS, on August 19, 2025, the Village adopted Ordinance Number 2025-11, An
Otrdinance Implementing a Municipal Grocery Retailers’ Occupation Tax and a Municipal Grocery
Occupation Tax for the Village of Glenwood, Cook County, Illinois, which was accepted by the
Illinois Department of Revenue for purposes of meeting the October 1, 2025, filing deadline for
January 1, 2026, implementation, but which required an amendment to conform with Illinois
Department of Revenue requirements; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities find that it is necessary and appropriate to adopt an
amended ordinance number 2025-11 in order to ensure full compliance, implementation, and

administration of the relevant tax.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, BY THE MAYOR AND THE BOARD OF
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, IN THE

EXERCISE OF ITS HOME RULE POWERS, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of fact
as if said recitals were fully set forth herein.



Section 4. If any provision of this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or
circumstances is ruled unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other
provisions or applications of this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid application
or provision, and each invalid provision or invalid application of this Ordinance is severable.

Section 5. The headings/captions identifying the various sections and subsections of this
Otrdinance are for reference only and do not define, modify, expand, or limit any of the terms or
provisions of the Ordinance.

Section 6. The Clerk is directed by the corporate authorities to publish this Ordinance in

pamphlet form. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage and publication in
accordance with 65 ILCS 5/1-2-4.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally 1eft Blank\

wn



STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK )

CERTIFICATION OF ORDINANCE

I, the undersigned, do heteby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Village Clerk of
the Village of Glenwood, Cook County, Illinois (the “I/7/age”), and that as such official, I am the
keeper of the records and files of the President and Trustees of the Village (the “Corporate Authorities”).

I do further certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and complete copy of an ordinance adopted
at a meeting of the Corporate Authorities held on the 18" day of November, 2025, which is entitled:

AMENDED ORDINANCE 2025-11
AN AMENDED ORDINANCE IMPLEMENTING A MUNICIPAL GROCERY
RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION TAX AND A MUNICIPAL GROCERY
OCCUPATION TAX FOR THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD, COOK COUNTY,
ILLINOIS

a true, correct, and complete copy of which said ordinance, as adopted at said meeting, appears is
attached.

I do further certify that the deliberations of the Corporate Authorities on the adoption of said
ordinance were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said ordinance was taken openly,
that said meeting was held at a specified time and place convenient to the public, that notice of said
meeting was duly given to all of the news media requesting such notice; that an agenda for said meeting
was posted at the location where said meeting was held and at the principal office of the Corporate
Authorities at least 48 hours in advance of the holding of said meeting; that said agenda described or
made specific reference to said ordinance; that said meeting was called and held in strict compliance
with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as amended, and the Illinois
Municipal Code, as amended, and that the Corporate Authorities have complied with all of the
provisions of said Act and said Code and with all of the procedural rules of the Corporate Authorities.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the Village, this
19 day of August, 2025.

Village Clerk
(SEAL)



STATE OF ILLINOIS }

COUNTY OF COOK )
VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD }

CERTIFICATE OF VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD CLERK

1, Jesse Durden, Village Clerk of the Village of Glenwood, in the County of Cook and State of
Illinois, and being the custodian of the records of said Village of Glenwood and keeper of the
corporate seal thereof, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the attached and foregoing is a true, correct,

and exact copy of:

Amended Ordinance 2025-11
AN AMENDED ORDINANCE IMPLEMENTING A MUNICIPAL GROCERY
RETAILERS' OCCUPATION TAX AND A MUNICIPAL GROCERY OCCUPATION
TAX FOR THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the said Village of Glenwood, Illinois, this 18" of

November, A.D., 2025.

(signature)

Jesse Durden, Village Clerk

Village of Glenwood, Illinois

(SEAL)



VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

AMENDED ORDINANCE 2025-11

AN AMENDED ORDINANCE IMPLEMENTING A MUNICIPAL GROCERY
RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION TAX AND A MUNICIPAL GROCERY OCCUPATION
TAX FOR THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

AMENDED ORDINANCE ADOPTED BY THE
PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD, THIS
18" DAY OF NOVEMBER 2025

ORIGINAL ORDINANCE ADOPTED BY THE
PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD, ON THE
19" DAY OF AUGUST 2025

Published in pamphlet form
by authority of the President
and Board of Trustees of the
Village of Glenwood, Cook
County, Illinois this 18" day of
November 2025.



VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD

AMENDED ORDINANCE NO. 2025-11

AN AMENDED ORDINANCE IMPLEMENTING A MUNICIPAL GROCERY
RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION TAX AND A MUNICIPAL GROCERY OCCUPATION
TAX FOR THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

WHEREAS, the Village of Glenwood (the “Village™) is a duly organized and validly existing
home rule municipality and may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its
government and affairs pursuant to Article VII, Section 6 of the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and

WHEREAS, the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/1-2-1, provides that the Mayor and the
Board of Trustees (the “Corporate Authorities”) of each municipality may pass all ordinances and
make all rules and regulations proper or necessaty, to carry into effect the powers granted to
municipalities, with such fines or penalties as may be deemed proper; and,

WHEREAS, Section 8-11-24 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-11-24) provides
that, beginning on January 1, 2026, all Illinois municipalities may impose a tax “upon all persons
engaged in the business of selling groceries at retail in the municipality” (the “Municipal Grocery Tax”)
(65 ILCS 5/8-11-24); and,

WHEREAS, the Municipal Grocery Retailers” Occupation Tax may be imposed “at the rate
of 1% of the gross receipts from these sales” (65 ILCS 5/8-11-24); and,

WHEREAS, any Municipal Grocery Retailers’ Occupation Tax shall be administered,
collected, and enforced by the Illinois Department of Revenue; and

WHEREAS, Section 8-11-24 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-11-24) requires
any municipality imposing a Municipal Grocery Retailers’ Occupation Tax under Section 8-11-24 of
the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-11-24) to also impose a Service Occupation Tax at the same

rate, “upon all persons engaged, in the municipality, in the business of making sales of service, who,

2



as an incident to making those sales of setvice, transfer groceries” as “an incident to a sale of service”
(the “Municipal Grocery Service Occupation Tax™) (65 ILCS 5/8-11-24); and

WHEREAS, any Municipal Grocery Setvice Occupation Tax shall be administered, collected,
and enforced by the Illinois Department of Revenue; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village believe that it is appropriate, necessary,
and in the best interests of the Village and its residents that the Village levy a Municipal Grocery
Retailers” Occupation Tax as permitted by Section 8-11-24 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS
5/8-11-24); and

WHEREAS, the Cotporate Authorities believe that it is appropriate, necessary, and in the
best interests of the Village and its residents that the Village levies a Municipal Grocery Service
Occupation Tax as permitted by Section 8-11-24 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-11-24);

WHEREAS, on August 19, 2025, the Village adopted Ordinance Number 2025-11, An
Ordinance Implementing a Municipal Grocery Retailers’ Occupation Tax and a Municipal Grocery
Occupation Tax for the Village of Glenwood, Cook County, Illinois, which was accepted by the
Illinois Department of Revenue for purposes of meeting the October 1, 2025, filing deadline for
January 1, 2026, implementation, but which required an amendment to conform with Illinois
Department of Revenue requirements; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities find that it is necessary and appropriate to adopt an
amended ordinance number 2025-11 in order to ensure full compliance, implementation, and
administration of the relevant tax.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, BY THE MAYOR AND THE BOARD OF
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, IN THE

EXERCISE OF ITS HOME RULE POWERS, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of fact
as if said recitals were fully set forth herein.



Section 2. Section 2 of Ordinance Number 2025-11 shall be amended and replaced such
that Chapter 94 (“Taxation”) of the Village of Glenwood’s Code of Ordinances shall be amended to
add a new “Article XVII” which shall be stated in its entirety as follows:

Chapter 94 - TAXATION

Article XVII - Municipal Grocery Retailers' Occupation Tax and Municipal Grocery Service
Occupation Tax.

Sec. 94-500. - Municipal Grocety Retailers' Occupation Tax Imposed.

A tax is hereby imposed upon all persons engaged in the business of selling groceries
at retail in this municipality at the rate of one percent (1%) of the gross receipts from
such sales made in the course of such business while this Ordinance is in effect. The
imposition of this tax is in accordance with and subject to the provisions of Section 8-
11-24 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-11-24).

Sec. 94-501. - Municipal Grocery Service Occupation Tax.

A tax is hereby imposed upon all persons engaged in this municipality in the business
of making sales of service, who, as an incident to making those sales of service, transfer
groceries as an incident to a sale of service. The rate of this tax shall be the same rate
identified in Section 94-500, above. The imposition of this tax is in accordance with
and subject to the provisions of Section 8-11-24 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65
ILCS 5/8-11-24).

Sec. 94-502. - Illinois Department of Revenue to Administer Both Taxes.

The taxes hereby imposed, and all civil penalties that may be assessed as an incident
thereto, shall be collected and enforced by the Department of Revenue of the State of
Ilinois. The Ilinois Department of Revenue shall have full power to administer and
enforce the provisions of this Ordinance.

Sec. 94-503. - Clerk to file Ordinance with the Illinois Department of Revenue.

As required under Section 8-11-24 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-11-
24), the Clerk is hereby directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance with the
Illinois Department of Revenue on or before October 1, 2025.

Sec. 94-504. — Effective Date.

The taxes imposed by this Ordinance shall take effect on January 1, 2026.

Section 3. All ordinances, resolutions, and policies or parts thereof, in conflict with the
provisions of this Ordinance are, to the extent of the conflict, expressly repealed on the effective date
of this Ordinance.



Section 4. If any provision of this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or
circumstances is ruled unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other
provisions or applications of this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid application
or provision, and each invalid provision or invalid application of this Ordinance is severable.

Section 5. The headings/captions identifying the various sections and subsections of this
Ordinance are for reference only and do not define, modify, expand, or limit any of the terms or
provisions of the Ordinance.

Section 6. The Clerk is directed by the corporate authorities to publish this Ordinance in

pamphlet form. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage and publication in
accordance with 65 ILCS 5/1-2-4.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally 1eft Blank\



ADOPTED by the following roll call vote this

day of NOVEMBER, 2025.

YES

NO ABSTAIN

ABSENT

Trustee Brown

Trustee Hadnott

Trustee Mosley

Trustee Rolle

Trustee Kahn Taylor

Trustee Williams, Sr.

TOTAL:

APPROVED this

ATTEST:

day of November 2025.

Jesse Durden, Village Clerk

Toleda Hart, Mayor




STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK )

CERTIFICATION OF ORDINANCE

1, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Village Clerk of
the Village of Glenwood, Cook County, Illinois (the “Village”’), and that as such official, I am the
keeper of the records and files of the President and Trustees of the Village (the “Corporate Authorities”).

1 do further certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and complete copy of an ordinance adopted
at a meeting of the Corporate Authorities held on the 18" day of November, 2025, which is entitled:

AMENDED ORDINANCE 2025-11
AN AMENDED ORDINANCE IMPLEMENTING A MUNICIPAL GROCERY
RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION TAX AND A MUNICIPAL GROCERY
OCCUPATION TAX FOR THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD, COOK COUNTY,
ILLINOIS

a true, cotrect, and complete copy of which said ordinance, as adopted at said meeting, appears is
attached.

I do further certify that the deliberations of the Corporate Authorities on the adoption of said
ordinance wete conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said ordinance was taken openly,
that said meeting was held at a specified time and place convenient to the public, that notice of said
meeting was duly given to all of the news media requesting such notice; that an agenda for said meeting
was posted at the location where said meeting was held and at the principal office of the Corporate
Authorities at least 48 hours in advance of the holding of said meeting; that said agenda described or
made specific reference to said ordinance; that said meeting was called and held in strict compliance
with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as amended, and the Illinois
Municipal Code, as amended, and that the Corporate Authorities have complied with all of the
provisions of said Act and said Code and with all of the procedural rules of the Corporate Authorities.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the Village, this
19™ day of August, 2025.

Village Clerk
(SEAL)



STATE OF ILLINOIS }

COUNTY OF COOK }
VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD }

CERTIFICATE OF VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD CLERK

I, Jesse Durden, Village Clerk of the Village of Glenwood, in the County of Cook and State of
Illinois, and being the custodian of the records of said Village of Glenwood and keeper of the
corporate seal thereof, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the attached and foregoing is a true, correct,

and exact copy of:

Amended Ordinance 2025-11
AN AMENDED ORDINANCE IMPLEMENTING A MUNICIPAL GROCERY
RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION TAX AND A MUNICIPAL GROCERY OCCUPATION
TAX FOR THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the said Village of Glenwood, Illinois, this 18" of

November, A.D., 2025.

(signature)

Jesse Durden, Village Clerk

Village of Glenwood, Illinois

(SEAL)



o\ENWOOp

e Village of Glenwood
U ’@ Department of Police

POLICE

Derek Peddycord
Chief of Police

Glenwood Police Department

NOV 18 2025 Board Report

PREVIOUS MONTH ACTIVITY: During the month of Oct 2025, Glenwood PD
responded to 651 calls for service. The majority of those calls were for the following

Traffic stops
Assist FD
Alarm calls
Speak to officer

SIGNIFICANT INCDIENTS: 12 Nov 2025 Aggravated Battery with firearm occurred in
area of N Sycamore Ln, investigation ongoing.

SSERT . No callouts

SMART 1 callout to assist another agency for a fatal accident
SSMCTF No activations
OCTOBER ARRESTS:

03 Oct25 31-year-old of Chicago, was arrested and charged with expired
registration and driving without a license at Halsted and Strieff.

05 Oct 25  29-year-old of Hazel Crest, was arrested and charged with Aggravated
assault, manufacture and delivery of cannabis, unlawful possession of cannabis, and
illegal transportation of open alcohol in the 19600 block of south Halsted.

16 Oct 25  57-year-old of Glenwood, was arrested and charged with disobeying a
traffic control device, expired registration, no valid insurance, and driving while license
revoked at Sycamore and Clark.

17 Oct 25  55-year-old of Berkely, was arrested and charged with driving with expired
registration and a suspended driver’s license in the 18300 block of south Halsted.

20 Oct 25  25-year-old of Chicago, was arrested and charged with disobeying a stop
sign and driving with a suspended license at Strieff and Virginia.

24 Oct 25  43-year-old of Glenwood, was arrested and charged with unlawful
possession of stolen registration.

250ct 25  45-year-old of Richton Park, was arrested and charged with Driving Under
the Influence of alcohol, improper lane usage, transportation of open alcoholic
container, and improper display of registration after being involved in a traffic crash at
Glenwood Thornton Rd and 183" St.

(708) 753-2420 Department One Asselborn Way
(708) 753-2405 Fax Glenwood, Illinois 60425



GLENWOO

i Village of Glenwood
iy '\/'- Department of Police

POLICE

Derek Peddycord

Chief of Police
26 Oct 25  24-year-old of East Hazel Crest, was arrested and charged with driving
while license suspended, improper backing, and expired registration after being
involved in a traffic crash in the 18200 block of south Halsted.
29 Oct 25  33-year-old of Glenwood, was arrested and charged with domestic
criminal damage to property and theft at a private residence.

TRAINING: During the month of October all officers received training on our new Taser
less lethal devices as well as the legal topic of vehicle search and seizure. The
following officers received additional training:

Ofc Mitchell received training in the Use of Force and close quarter handgun skills.
Detectives Morache and Gilani received training at the IL homicide investigators
conference.

Ofc Cunningham received training on accident reconstruction.

Ofc Smith received training in specialized weapons and tactics.

MISCELLANEOUS:

Prior to Halloween all registered sex offenders were visited by the GPD to provide them
statutes regarding Halloween.

GPD participated in the Glenwood Lynwood library trunk or treat, and the Living Springs
fall fest.

HOLIDAY SHOPPING SAFETY TIPS:

e Stay alert and be aware of what's going on around you.

o Park in a well-lighted space, and be sure to lock the car, close the windows, and
hide shopping bags and gifts in the trunk, especially at gas stations.

e Avoid carrying large amounts of cash; pay with a check or credit card whenever

possible.
e Shopping with kids? Teach them to go to a store clerk or security guard if you get
separated.
Chief Peddycord
Derek Peddycovd
14 Nov 2025
(708) 753-2420 Department One Asselborn Way

(708) 753-2405 Fax Glenwood, Illinois 60425



GLENWOOD FIRE DEPARTMENT
MONTHLY REPORT
OCTOBER 2025

Response Statistics

During October, the Fire Department responded to two hundred, twenty-two (222) emergency calls. EMS
incidents accounted for 67% of our call volume while the remaining 33% were fire response and service
calls.

The one hundred, forty-nine (149) EMS calls yielded one hundred, thirty-eight (138) patient contacts. Of
those, 72% of the patients were transported by ambulance to the hospital. Eighty-one, or 82%, required
Advanced Life Support (ALS) care during the month.

Incident Type

® Fire/Service Calls  ® EMS: ALS Transport = EMS: BLS Transport = EMS: Refusal = EMS: False Alarm

Our average response time for all calls (from dispatch to arrival) was four minutes and fifteen seconds
{(0:04:15). This time continues to be impacted by ongoing road construction through town. Our average
turnout time (from dispatch to enroute) was one minute, thirteen seconds (0:01:13). The shorter time it
takes for our personnel to get out the door, the better the potential outcome of the emergency. Finally,
our average time on scene for all incidents was seventeen minutes and fifty-two seconds (17:52). Time
on scene is often out of our control as the nature of the incident dictates the time it takes for us to
mitigate.

Inspection Services
We conducted a total of one-hundred, eighteen (118) scheduled inspections during October:
¢ 37 Rental Inspections (33 original inspections, 4 follow-ups)
e 23 Point-of-Sale Inspections (14 original inspections, 9 follow-ups)
e 34 Permit Inspections
e 22 Fire Inspections (10 original inspections, 12 follow-ups)
¢ 2 Health Inspections (2 original inspections, 0 follow-ups)

Only fifteen (15) notices were posted for property maintenance violations during the month. This can be
attributed to an increase in code compliance as well as the changing of the seasons. Finally, forty-two
(42) citations were issued for Local Ordinance Court. Thirty-two (32) of these citations were issued for
failing to schedule annual inspections.

FD Monthly Report — October 2025



Fire/EMS Training

Firefighter training topics for October included ground ladder rescues, public education, uses of the
different fire service nozzles, water supply, hazardous materials incident response, and a self-contained
breathing apparatus (SCBA) maze. We also completed hose testing of the 2,100 feet of hose carried
among our two pumpers. And as part of our affiliation with the South Suburban Combined Area Training
group, we planned and hosted our annual hazardous materials training. EMS training focused on
treatment of patients exposed to various hazardous chemicals.

Fire Prevention / Special Events

Our main event took place on Saturday, October 11" when we held an open house at the new fire station.
The event was well attended and a big success. Many thanks to all who helped make it a success! In the
days leading up to the open house, fire personnel went door-to-door to distribute flyers. Additionally,
several projects came together at the right time as we were able to show off our new quarters. We will
certainly look to build on this success and hold a Pancake Breakfast/Open House next spring.

Not to be lost in the energy surrounding the open house event, the first full week in October represents
Fire Prevention Week. This year’s theme, “Charge into Fire Safety: Lithium-lon Batteries in Your Home”
was on display with helpful safety tips on the fire dangers associated with lithium ion. We also
participated in the Illinois Fire Safety Alliance “Be Alarmed!” program’s “Smoke Alarm Installation Blitz”
during the month. We installed fifty-five (55) smoke alarms and ended the month with a waiting list while
we await delivery of additional alarms.

We attended the monthly Lunch with a First Responder program at Brookwood Junior High School on
October 1%, We also continued with our monthly blood pressure checks at the Blakey Center on October
8™ and 23™. This month we also started a regular weekly Lunch with a First Responder event at Glenwood
Academy. Every Friday at noon, available fire personnel have lunch and interact with the students.

Finally, the Fire Department stayed active during the Halloween holiday. We participated in the
Glenwood-Lynwood Library’s Candy Crawl event on Friday, October 24™ as well as Living Springs
Community Church’s Fall Fest on Sunday, October 26'". At both events, fire personnel set up the aerial
ladder for display, complete with a Halloween-themed spider hanging down from the ladder, and passed
out candy to the kids in attendance. We then invited the community to both fire stations on Halloween
for trick-or-treating.

We had a very busy month of October this year and look to continue improving our operations and
community engagement in the future.

Respectfully submitted,

Kevin Welsh, Jr.
Fire Chief

FD Monthly Report — October 2025



Glenwoodie Golf Operations: Operational

Report

Executive Summary

This report provides an overview of the operational performance of Glenwoodie Golf Course for
the Month of September focusing on a three-year trend analysis.

We hosted 15 Outings and 3 Banquets in September.

Financial Performance

3-Year September Revenue Trend

Sep-22 Sep-23

Rounds 3113 3320

Golf Ops  $ 135,779.00 $ 155,270.00

F&B $  74,856.00 $  80,412.00

Total *$ 210,635.00  '$ 235,682.00
Observations:

Sep-24

3814

$ 179,069.00
$ 117,080.00
"'$ 296,149.00

3yr Avg Sep-25 Diff 3 YrAvg

3415.666667 3194 -221 -7%
$ 156,706.00 $ 173,12700 $ 16,421.00 10%
S 90,782.67 $ 76,453.00 $  (14,329.00) -17%
S 247,488.67 'S 249,580.00 $ 2,092.00 1%

« With banquets slightly below our average, golf related income carried us in

September.

»  Total revenue up 1% over our 3 yr average



Fiscal YTD
Operation Revenue Recap 5/1/2025-9/30/25

June July August September YTD FY26
Green Fees 127,742 137,583 185,045 113,875 653,565
Carts 36,069 31,869 33,736 28,005 160,268
Range 12,180 10,845 12,627 10,612 56,119
Season Pass 1,200 - 8,840 8,267 22,402
Simulator - - - - -
Membership Dues - - - - 259
Subtotal Golf Fees 177,191 180,297 240,247 160,759 892,613
Alcoholic Beverages 40,161 37,236 45,905 35,378 186,259
Non-Alcoholic Beverages 5,254 5,576 5,735 4,509 24,017
Subtotal Beverages 45,415 42,813 51,640 39,887 210,276
Outing Food 23,394 22,008 60,467 17,177 123,046
Banquet Food - 2,376 3,643 - 11,869
Food 5,652 6,014 5,857 4,664 28,027
Snacks 922 748 861 767 4,100
Subtotal Food 29,968 31,147 70,828 22,608 167,042
Merchandise 15,225 14,651 19,438 12,368 72,637
Service Charge 15,275 12,385 10,255 13,392 67,487
Other 890 592 1,166 566 3,677
Grand Total $283,965 $281,884  $393,573 $ 249,580 $1,413,732
Golf Rounds 3,615 3,820 4,655 3,194 18,105
Simulator Rounds - - - - -
Cart Qty 2,698 2,436 2,508 2,000 11,915

Bev Cart Purchases $16,175 $9,771 $10,892 $9,559 $54,658



Operation Revenue Recap 5/1/2025-9/30/25

VS FY25 VS FY25 VS FY25 VS FY25 VS FY25
June July August September YTD FY26
Green Fees 26,979 17,574 58,934 (2,646) 104,117
Carts 1,996 (13,534) (8,892) (15,195) (34,536)
Range 2,518 1,987 3,254 3,175 12,630
Season Pass (2,933) (2,595) 6,500 7,667 9,823
Simulator - - - - -
Membership Dues (100) - - - 59
Subtotal Golf Fees 28,460 3,432 59,796 (6,999) 92,092
Alcoholic Beverages (1,924) (8,719) 7,744 (7,134) (9,483)
Non-Alcoholic Beverages 377 16 662 (284) 196
Subtotal Beverages (1,547) (8,703) 8,406 (7,417) (9,287)
Outing Food 17,703 3,263 36,296 (22,218) 35,044
Banquet Food - (6,821) 3,643 (12,646) (9,973)
Food (95) (670) 283 (316) {1,389)
Snacks (200) (168) (29) 104 (338)
Subtotal Food 17,409 (4,396) 40,192 (35,076) 23,344
Merchandise 4,640 3,181 8,366 1,057 17,645
Service Charge 4,290 (2,663) (1,455) 2,220 15,112
Other (84) (227) (920) (354) (1,483)
Grand Total $53,167 ($9,375)  $114,385 ($46,570)  $137,422
Golf Rounds 256 (295) (11) (620) (927)
Simulator Rounds - - - - -
Cart Qty 115 (913) (707) (1,229) (2,764)
Bev Cart Purchases $2,311 ($731) ($1,358) $3,494 $1,846
Observations:

* Glenwoodie is in good financial condition heading into the offseason!
*  Glenwoodie is up $137,422 over last Fiscal YTD



GLENWOOD PW NOVEMBER 2025 REPORT

Public Works received a wide variety of calls to go along with our regularly scheduled tasks. Below is a breakdown of
those requests.

STREETS

D construction has finally completed their work for the season. If everything goes as
planned the road will be opened back up by 11-14-25. We had our first snowfall of the season, the
employees and trucks were ready, and the roads were cleared without delay. PW continues to clean
and maintain all entrance areas into the village.

GARBAGE

Public Works continued to identify and remove rubbish/litter from main throughways, parks
and other village owned properties. PW continues to police for litter in the plaza on Halsted and the
field behind Aldi.

Forestry

Public Works continue to trim park way trees and remove dead and damaged trees
throughout the village. PW is focusing on any resident complaints pertaining to tree work. The stumps
have been ground and the yards have been restored. The leaf bag program will run November 11'", 18",
25, and December 2™,
Water System Maintenance

Public Works had 2 watermain breaks. Lead and Copper testing is complete; the results
have been sent to the IEPA for compliance.

Sewer Maintenance

Public Works responded to 0 homes for possible sewer backups. PW continues to stay proactive
with preventative maintenance with the villages sewer system. Vactor work has been completed and is
back in service.

Equipment

Public Works continue maintenance on our fleet. Snow and ice trucks and equipment are fully operational.



GLENWOOD PW NOVEMBER 2025 REPORT

Parks and Village Buildings

Public Works continue to clean up parks and village buildings. The grass has taken at Arquilia
and the grounds look fantastic.

Employee Numbers

Public Works employment numbers are 10 employees. We are currently reviewing applications
for 1 new hire and will be making an offer this week.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Yoe Benoit



	11.18.2025  RegularBoard Meeting Agenda
	Packet 11.18.25 (002)



